Town of Minnesott Beach
Board of Commissioners’ Meeting
July 14, 2020
Minutes

The meeting of the Board of Commissioners (BOC), Town of Minnesott Beach, was held
Tuesday July 14, 2020 at 7:00 P.M at the Minnesott Beach Town Hall.

Board members present: Mayor Tim Fowler, Commissioner Adam Garfinkel, Commissioner
Cliff Braly, Commissioner Kenny Campen and Commissioner David Gaskins.

Others present were Pamlico County Manager Tim Buck, Jeff Sanders Pamlico Water
Department engineer, Town Manager Carolyn Braly, Town Clerk Donna Scott, Mike &
Susan Dorsey, Ken Howard, Barbara James, Brian Milner, Starr Murphy, Bryany & Robert
MacGregar and Julie Steinmetz.

Mayor Fowler called the meeting to order at 7:00pm with a moment of silence and led
everyone in the pledge of allegiance to the flag.

Mayor Fowler called for any discussion or revision to, June 9, 2020 minutes.
Commissioner Garfinkel moved to approve the minutes. All ayes.

Mayor Fowler called for any discussion or revision to the July 14, 2020 agenda. Mayor
Fowler amended the agenda to have County Manager Tim Buck speak following the Public
Comments. He also added under Miscellaneous the Purdue class action suit regarding
opioids and comments about what’s happening at the Marina. Commissioner Garfinkel
moved to accept the amended agenda. All ayes.

Public Comments: Mike Dorsey said he was representing the South Lakes Property Owners
Association and they have safety concerns regarding the intersection of Country Club Dive
West and Bennett Road. He said, as everyone is aware, the construction has been going on
there for months. It is the only entrance and exit o their subdivision. He said they were
informed it would be repaired and operable by hurricane season. They are concerned a
serious hurricane could take out that area and there would be no access for emergency
vehicles. Mr. Dorsey said they think this is something that needs immediate attention.

Barbara James said she lives on Neuse River Drive and was atfected by the recent water
outage. She said this is the 3" time the owner of the marina has cut into the water line. She
said this time it has been 12 days dealing with unportable water. Mrs. James asked the
commissioners what can done to keep this from happening again.

Brian Milner said he speaks for a solution to Country Club Drive West and Bennett Road
issue.

Starr Murphy asked [or the board to try to find property to either purchase or lease that would
give residents of Minnesott Beach access to the beach. She said she had several volunteers

07/14/2020 BOC meeting 1



who told her they would keep the property mowed and cleaned up. Mrs. Murphy said
perhaps gaining access via the mobile home court property or there is a vacant lot on Country
Club Drive that would work. She said she did not know who the owner was. She also said a
retired CAMA employee told her there are multiple CAMA grants available to help towns
purchase waterfront property. Mrs. Murphy praised the new owner of the golf course for all
of the work done and how beautiful it 1s.

Tim Buck said he appreciated the opportunity to come talk to the board about the issues in
Minnesott Beach. He reported that on July 2 the water line was cut late in the afternoon
where it crosses the marina property. This affected residents on Neuse River Drive, Best
Lane and the lower end of Bennett Road. The county’s licensed contractor repaired the line
late Thursday evening. The protocol with a broken line is to issue a Boil Water alert until a
sample passes the state standard for water quality. No sample tests could be taken until
Monday because no labs were opened on Friday July 3 or the rest of the July 4™ weekend.
He said they lost 4 days because of the holidays. The tests taken on Monday and they did not
meet the state standards. After flushing the lines, several more samples were taken that also
did not pass the tests. On the 11™, a sample was taken upstream from the break to make sure
it was not a bigger problem. Samples were taken both upstream and downstream. The
sample upstream passed and the one downstream did not. He said they have isolated where
the problem exists. Mr. Buck said they contacted state engineers to make recommendations
for the next steps. They plan to shut the meters down and shock it with a high dose of
chlorine and let it sit in the lines for a least a couple of hours and flush the system and
resample. They will notify the affected residents in person and drop oft water at the town
hall for the residents to pick up. Mr. Buck said the contaminate is not an E.coli but a
coliform bacteria. He said hope to begin the process in the next two days. Mayor Fowler
asked about a long-range plan. Mr. Buck said that is under discussion. It will be a long
drawn out process to design and acquire easements for a new water line.

Country Club Drive West and Bennett Road: Mr. Buck said he’d spoken to Mr. Gordy Eure
with DOT and was told they were going to replace the culvert. One of the issues they have is
the time it will take to do the work will necessitate having a temporary bridge in place while
they worked. They will have to put in 24-hour traffic control for one-way traffic. Mr Dorsey
asked where the bridge would be located because of safety coneerns for residents of Country
Club Drive West ingress and egress. Mr. Buck said he did not know. Commissioner Braly
said he’d spoken to Mr. Eure and they were coming out tomorrow to locate the site for the
bridge. He assured him that getting in and out of Country Club Drive West would not be an
issue.

Mayor Fowler thanked Mr. Buck and Mr. Sanders for coming to the meeting and bringing
everyone up to date on the water issue and Country Club Drive West/Bennett Road culvert.

Agenda Items for discussion and possible motion or action

Planning Board: Commissioner Garfinkel said there was not a July meeting of the
Planning Board. He said the he’d asked the town manager to forward the presentation
of the Arlington Place master plan sketches to the commissioners to review. These
were sent by Becca Lang. The planning board will meet in August to review these
plans and come back to the Board in August with recommendations. Commissioner

07/14/2020 BOC meeting 2



Garfinkel said he and the Town Manager will be going through the ordinances to bring
them into Compliance with the General Assembly’s requirements.

Town Manager’s report: There were three zoning permits issued. One for a deck
extension on Mill Creek in Arlington Place, one on Country Club Drive for a shed and
one on Indian Bluff Drive for a shed.

Town Projects — Commissioner Braly reported the town was asked to look at the ditch
that was not draining at 141 Country Club Drive West. He said it would be an easy fix.
Ken Heath still needs to finish the ditch on Country Club Drive at Hardison Drive.

Mrs. Finn 1s in the loop with this process. Mrs. Johnson’s drain is holding up fine.
Commissioner Braly asked if the town can sell a small trailer. Commissioner Gaskins
said we need to do what is legal. Mayor Fowler recommended we advertise it on our
website for sale.

Town Clean-up: Commissioner Braly reported the clean-up was very successful! He
said Larry Hackney was responsible for getting ample help! Mayor Fowler thanked
Commissioner Braly for all of his hard work. He reported he will have the final cost as
the next meeting. The only thing missing is the tipping fee.

Financial Report: Commissioner Gaskins reported all was within the budgeted
amounts. Commissioner Campen asked if the office remodel had been completed and
paid? He was told it was., The Town’s current assets as of June 30, 2020 are: First
Citizen's Bank Checking $3,759.20; First Citizen's MM $366,744.73; CressCom Bank’s
Savings $219.292.95; North Carolina Management Trust is $211,475.77; Petty Cash
$50.00. Total assets for the Town are $1,030,110.22.

Miscellaneous: Commissioner Gaskins reported the Pamlico County Library Trustees
had asked for a donation of $1 per person in the town. Commissioner Gaskins moved
to give a donation to the Pamlico County Library in the amount of $500. All ayes.

Mayor Fowler reported the County Manager had said he would come to the Town
meetings any time we invited him. Mayor Fowler said he would invite him to come to
the August 14th to discuss the property tax increases.

Mayor Fowler reported he had talked with the Town’s attorney, Aaron Arnette. Purdue
Pharm is going into bankruptcy. There is a huge class action suit against them. Towns
have been asked if they want to join in the suit. The attorneys handling this have come
up with an estimate for every town in the nation if the suit is successful. The Town of
Minnesott Beach could receive upwards of $31,000.00. Mayor Fowler said he
authorized Mr. Arnette to drive up the necessary paperwork.

Mayor Fowler said he’d talked with several folks around the marina. He said Tom
McClery had been in and talked with Carolyn Braly about zoning. Mayor Fowler said
there is an understanding on Mr. McClery’s part now between property ownership and
zoning. They have Josh Nobles is working with them on a plan for the area. Mayor
Fowler reported the marina was given an informal cease and desist order last Friday by

Ray Bennett Pamlico County building inspector. Tom McClery has contacted the state

07/14/2020 BOC meeting



water quality office in Washington, NC. The state person will meet with the marina
folks going over what they can and cannot do. Mr. Melo has moved between 4-5 acres
of dirt without a permit.

There being no further business, Commissioner Braly moved to adjourn. All Ayes.

braly

Carolyn Braly, Tﬁn‘: Manager J

07/14/2020 BOC meeting



